
 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN 
Department of Safety and Professional Services 
1400 E Washington Ave. 
Madison WI  53703 
 
Governor Scott Walker Secretary Dave Ross 
 
 

 Voice: 608-266-2112    FAX: 608-267-3816    TTY: 608-267-2416 

 
Mail to: 

PO Box 8935 
Madison WI  53708-8935 

 
Email: dsps@wisconsin.gov 

Web: http://dsps.wi.gov 

 

 
Professional Counselor Section 

Agenda 

PROFESSIONAL COUNSELOR SECTION, 
OF THE 

MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPY, PROFESSIONAL COUNSELING 
AND SOCIAL WORK EXAMINING BOARD 

Contact: Dan Williams (608) 266-2112 
Room 121A, 1400 E. Washington Avenue, Madison 

APRIL 8, 2013 
 
Notice: The following agenda describes the issues that the Section plans to consider at the meeting.  At the time of 
the meeting, items may be removed from the agenda.  Please consult the meeting minutes for a description of the 
actions and deliberations of the Section. 
 

10:30 A.M. 
 
OPEN SESSION - CALL TO ORDER – ROLL CALL 
 
A. Approval of Agenda (1-4) 
 
B. Approval of Meeting Minutes of February 26, 2013 (5-10) 
 
C. Administrative Matters – Discussion and Consideration 

1) Paperless Update (11-24) 
2) Staff Update 
3) Possible re-schedule of July meeting 

 
D. Position Statements – Discussion and Consideration (25-26) 
 
E. Winona State Request – Discussion and Consideration (27-30) 
 
F. UW-Stout Letter of Inquiry – Discussion and Consideration (31-34) 
 
G. Legislation/Administrative Rule Matters Update – Discussion and Consideration 

1) Executive Order 61 (35-36) 
2) Drafting Amendments to Admin Rule MPSW 10, 11, 12, and 14 Relating to License 

Education, Examination, and Supervised Practice (37-48) 
 

1



 
Professional Counselor Section 

Agenda 

H. Items Received After Preperation of the Agenda: 
1) Introductions, Announcements and Recognition 
2) Presentations of Petition(s) for Summary Suspension 
3) Presentation of Proposed Stipulation(s), Final Decision(s) and Order(s) 
4) Presentation of Proposed Final Decision and Order(s) 
5) Informational Item(s) 
6) Division of Legal Services and Compliance (DLSC) Matters 
7) Education and Examination Matters 
8) Credentialing Matters 
9) Approvals for Psychometric Testing 
10) Class 1 Hearings 
11) Practice Questions/Issues 
12) Legislation/Administrative Rule Matters 
13) Liaison Report(s) (Coalition Report/WAMFT Report) 
14) Speaking Engagement(s), Travel, or Public Relation Request(s) 

 
I. Informational Item(s) 
 
J. Public Comments 
 
CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION to deliberate on cases following hearing (s. 19.85(1)(a), 
Stats.; consider closing disciplinary investigation with administrative warning (s. 
19.85(1)(b), Stats. and 440.205, Stats., to consider individual histories or disciplinary data 
(s. 19.85 (1)(f), Stats.; and, to confer with legal counsel (s. 19.85(1)(g), Stats.)  
 
K. Monitoring Matters 

1) Bradley W. Knapp, L.P.C. – Requesting Termination of Suspension (49-84) 
 
L. Deliberation of Proposed Final Decision and Orders 
 
M. Request for Extension of Time to Complete the CE Required for the 2013 Renewal 

1) J.B. (85-134) 
 
N. Division of Legal Services and Compliance 

1) Case Status Report 
2) Case Closings 

 
O. Consulting with Legal Counsel 
 

2



 
Professional Counselor Section 

Agenda 

P. Deliberation of Items Received After Preperation of the Agenda: 
1) Deliberation on Class 1 Hearings 
2) Application Issues and/or Reviews 
3) Professional Assistance Procedure (PAP) 
4) Monitoring Matters 
5) Proposed Stipulations, Final Decisions and Orders 
6) Administrative Warnings 
7) Review of Administrative Warning 
8) Orders Fixing Costs/Matters Related to Costs 
9) Proposed Final Decisions and Orders 
10) Petitions for Summary Suspension 
11) Petitions for Re-hearings 
12) Education and Examination Matters 
13) Credential Issues 
14) Supervisor Approvals 
15) Appearances from Requests Received or Renewed 
16) Motions 

 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING CLOSED 
SESSION 
 
Voting on Items Considered or Deliberated on in Closed Session, if Voting is Appropriate 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

3



 

 

 

4



 

 
Professional Counselors Section 

February 26, 2013 
Meeting Minutes 

1 of 5 

PROFESSIONAL COUNSELORS SECTION 
MEETING MINUTES 
FEBRUARY 26, 2013 

 
PRESENT: Charles Lindsey, Leslie Mirkin, Allison Gordon 
 
ABSENT: Nancy Clark 
 
STAFF: Dan Williams, Executive Director; Yolanda McGowan, Legal Counsel; Matt Niehaus, 

Bureau Assistant; and other Department Staff 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Charles Lindsey, Chair, called the meeting to order at 12:39 p.m.  A quorum of three (3) members was 
present. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon, to approve the agenda as 
published.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES OF OCTOBER 23, 2012 

 
MOTION: Allison Gordon moved, seconded by Leslie Mirkin, to approve the minutes of 

October 23, 2012 as published.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES OF DECEMBER 19, 2012 
 

MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon, to approve the minutes of 
December 19, 2012 as published.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ON ADMINISTRATIVE RULE MPSW 10 AND MPSW 14 RELATING TO 

EDUCATION 
 

MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon, to accept the 
recommendations of the Clearinghouse report except where noted.  The 
Section designates Charles Lindsey and Allison Gordon to review and 
approve the legislative report and legislative draft.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 

5



 

 
Professional Counselors Section 

February 26, 2013 
Meeting Minutes 

2 of 5 

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon, that the record indicate the 
election of officers and delegation of liaisons as discussed below.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
Election of Officers 
 
Chair 
 

NOMINATION: Leslie Mirkin nominated Charles Lindsey for the Office of Chair.  Nomination 
carried by unanimous vote. 

 
Dan Williams called for other nominations three (3) times. 
 
Charles Lindsey was elected as Chair. 
 
Vice Chair 
 

NOMINATION: Leslie Mirkin nominated Allison Gordon for the Office of Vice Chair.  
Nomination carried by unanimous vote. 

 
Dan Williams called for other nominations three (3) times. 
 
Allison Gordon was elected as Vice Chair. 
 
Secretary 
 

NOMINATION: Leslie Mirkin nominated Leslie Mirkin for the Office of Secretary.  Nomination 
carried by unanimous vote. 

 
Dan Williams called for other nominations three (3) times. 
 
Leslie Mirkin was elected as Secretary. 
 
Appointment of Liaisons 
 
Credentialing & Education Review: Charles Lindsey, Leslie Mirkin 
Examination Liaison: Charles Lindsey 
Continuing Education: Charles Lindsey 
Legislative Liaison: Leslie Mirkin 
Travel Liaison: Allison Gordon 
Division of Legal Services and Compliance Monitoring Liaison: Leslie Mirkin 
Professional Assistance Procedure (PAP) Liaison: Leslie Mirkin 
Practice Question Liaison: Charles Lindsey 
Screening Panel: Allison Gordon, Leslie Mirkin 
 

6



 

 
Professional Counselors Section 

February 26, 2013 
Meeting Minutes 

3 of 5 

MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon, that complaints that 
may be received against DVR staff be opened at the discretion of legal 
counsel with guidance and advice from Charles Lindsey.  Allison Gordon 
and Leslie Mirkin recuse themselves from such matters.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
MOTION: Allison Gordon moved, seconded by Leslie Mirkin, to delegate authority 

to the Credentialing Liaisons to address all issues related to credentialing 
matters.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon that the Section 

delegates authority to the Chair or designated Section member to sign 
documents on behalf of the Section.  In order to carry out duties of the 
Section, the Chair or Section member has the ability to delegate this 
signature authority to the Executive Director for purposes of facilitating 
the completion of assignments during or between meetings.  The Chair or 
Section member delegates the authority to the Executive Director, to sign 
the name of the Chair or Section member on documents as necessary.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
MOTION: Allison Gordon moved, seconded by Leslie Mirkin, that, in order to 

facilitate the completion of assignments between meetings, the Section 
delegates its authority by order of succession to the Chair, highest ranking 
officer, or longest serving member of the Section, to appoint liaisons to the 
Department where knowledge or experience in the profession is required 
to carry out the duties of the Section in accordance with the law.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon, to adopt the Roles and 

Authorities Delegated to the Monitoring Liaison document.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
OTTAWA UNIVERSITY’S REQUEST FOR PROGRAM APPROVAL 

 
MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon, to accept Ottawa’s 

Master of Arts program as a pre-approved program.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 

7



 

 
Professional Counselors Section 

February 26, 2013 
Meeting Minutes 

4 of 5 

LEGISLATION/ADMINISTRATIVE RULE MATTERS 
 

MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon, to examine in 
response to Executive Order 61 all of MPSW as relevant to the PC Section 
prior to the April 8th, 2013 meeting for purposes of discussion and 
recommendations at that meeting.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
MOTION: Allison Gordon moved, seconded by Leslie Mirkin, to approve the scope 

for MPSW 10, 11, 12, and 14 for implementation.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
MOTION: Allison Gordon moved, seconded by Leslie Mirkin, to request DSPS staff 

provide the Section an electronic copy of the scope and general timeline 
prior to the April meeting for review.  Furthermore, an item will be placed 
on the April meeting agenda to begin drafting the rule.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
DWD/DVR LETTER OF REQUEST 

 
MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon, to designate Charles 

Lindsey as the Section’s representative to draft a response to the 
DWD/DVR letter of request.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
NBCC ANNUAL MEETING 

 
MOTION: Allison Gordon moved, seconded by Leslie Mirkin, to designate Charles 

Lindsey as the Section’s representative to attend the National Board for 
Certified Counselors meeting on August 8-9, 2013 in Greensboro, North 
Carolina.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon, to convene to closed 

session pursuant to Wisconsin State statutes 19.85(1)(a)(b)(f) and (g), to 
consult with legal counsel to deliberate on proposed stipulations, 
deliberate on administrative warnings, deliberate on monitoring issues, 
application review, monitoring report and DOE case status reports.  Roll 
Call Vote: Allison Gordon-yes; Charles Lindsey-yes; and Leslie Mirkin-
yes.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
The Board convened into Closed Session at 3:32 p.m. 
 

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 

MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon, to reconvene into 
open session.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
The Board reconvened into Open Session at 4:26 p.m. 
 

8



 

 
Professional Counselors Section 

February 26, 2013 
Meeting Minutes 

5 of 5 

VOTING ON ITEMS CONSIDERED OR DELIBERATED ON IN CLOSED SESSION, 
IF VOTING IS APPROPRIATE 

 
MOTION: Allison Gordon moved, seconded by Leslie Mirkin, to affirm all motions 

made in closed session.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

PROPOSED FINAL DECISION AND ORDER IN THE MATTER OF THE 
APPLICATION FOR PROFESSIONAL COUNSELOR TRAINING LICENSE, 

CHRISTINE A. ELLIS, APPLICANT (DHA CASE #12 CPC 021)(DLSC CASE #12 CPC 
0061) 

 
MOTION: Allison Gordon moved, seconded by Leslie Mirkin, to adopt the Findings 

of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Proposed Decision and Order in the matter 
of the application of Christine A. Ellis, Applicant –DLSC Case # 12 CPC 
0061.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
DIVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES AND COMPLIANCE 

 
Case Closings 
 

MOTION: Allison Gordon moved, seconded by Leslie Mirkin, to close case number 12 
CPC 022 for Insufficient Evidence (IE).  Motion carried. 

 
Charles Lindsey recused himself from voting and deliberation in the matter of 12 CPC 022.  
Allison Gordon presided as Chair. 
 

MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon, to close case number 12 
CPC 087 for No Violation (NV).  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION: Allison Gordon moved, seconded by Leslie Mirkin, to adjourn the 

meeting.  Motion carried unanimously.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 4:26 p.m. 

9



 

 

 

10



State of Wisconsin 
Department of Safety & Professional Services 

Revised 10/12 

 
AGENDA REQUEST FORM 

1) Name and Title of Person Submitting the Request: 
 
Matthew C. Niehaus, Bureau Assistant 

2) Date When Request Submitted: 
 
2/4/2013 
Items will be considered late if submitted after 4:30 p.m. and  less than:  

 10 work days before the meeting for Medical Board 
 14 work days before the meeting for all others 

3) Name of Board, Committee, Council, Sections: 
 
Professional Counselors Section 
4) Meeting Date: 
 
4/8/2013 

5) Attachments: 
 Yes 
 No 

 

6) How should the item be titled on the agenda page? 
Paperless Initiative 

7) Place Item in: 
 Open Session 
 Closed Session 
 Both 

 

8) Is an appearance before the Board being 
scheduled?   
 
   Yes (Fill out Board Appearance Request) 
  No 

9) Name of Case Advisor(s), if required: 
      

10) Describe the issue and action that should be addressed: 
 
Brief presentation of how Board Members can sign up for SharePoint access as a part of the paperless 
initiative, as well as instructions for using DSPS laptops. 

11)                                                                                  Authorization 
 
Matthew C. Niehaus 
Signature of person making this request                                                                                          Date 
 
 
Supervisor (if required)                                                                                                                       Date 
 
 
Executive Director signature (indicates approval to add post agenda deadline item to agenda)    Date  

Directions for including supporting documents:  
1.  This form should be attached to any documents submitted to the agenda. 
2.  Post Agenda Deadline items must be authorized by a Supervisor and the Policy Development Executive Director. 
3.  If necessary, Provide original documents needing Board Chairperson signature to the Bureau Assistant prior to the start of a 
meeting.  

 
 

11

http://connectus/BoardServices/Shared%20Documents/Agenda%20and%20Appearance%20Forms/Board%20Appearance%20Request%20Form_20121005.doc


How to register for a username/password on http://register.wisconsin.gov .   
 
In order to access the Board SharePoint site, Board Members must obtain a State of WI/DOA username/password from this site 
http://register.wisconsin.gov .  Once registered, Board Members will be provided a DOA credential under the Wisconsin External (wiext) 
domain.   This account is intended to provide users with access to multiple State of Wisconsin web applications, including the DSPS 
SharePoint site. 
 
 
To Begin, use the ‘Self Registration’ link 
 

 
 

Not sure if you already have DOA/State of 
WI account? 
 
Use the ‘Forgot Your Logon ID or Password’ 
link to check 

12

http://register.wisconsin.gov/
http://register.wisconsin.gov/


After accepting the user agreement, complete the ‘Account Creation’ form. 
 
Indicate ‘SharePoint’ under the section entitled, ‘Systems You Will Access’ 
 

 

Please use a login ID of your first 
initial followed by your middle initial 
followed by your last name, as in the 
example to the left. 
 
Remember your logon ID, as you will 
need to provide that to DSPS staff in 
order for you to receive proper access 
rights. 
 
Once you have been granted 
permission to access the Board’s 
website, you should receive an 
automated ‘Welcome to SharePoint’ 
email with a link to the site.  

 

13



 
Above is an example of an agenda packet page, with some features you can access through Adobe Reader. 
A: Bookmarks – When the Bureau Assistant creates the Agenda Packet, it is possible to place in bookmarks for quick reference during meetings.  
You can expand and minimize categories to better enable you to jump from section to section of your agenda here. 
B: Comment – On specially designated .pdf files, it is possible for Adobe Reader to be given comment privileges.  This allows a Board member to 
make comments on documents, as well as edit, highlight, or insert text in suitable files.  Please note, if the file is a scanned copy, it is likely that 
the highlight and text editing features will not be usable.  The comment feature will still work in such an issue. 
C: Annotations & Drawing Markups – These are the different options you can use to mark up your document for your reference.  If you mouse 
over an option, it will give a brief description of what it can do for you.  Feel free to experiment and find out what works best for you! 
D: Comments List – Quickly jump between your comments by selecting them in this list.  Never again will you miss out on a note during a 
discussion with this handy tool. 
E: Page List – No more rifling through papers in order to track down that page someone mentioned!  With this handy bar, you can simply type in 
the page you are looking for, hit enter, and Adobe Reader will take you directly to the page. 
F: Zoom – Having trouble reading something?  You can zoom in and out on a document with this bar.  The plus and minus signs to the left can be 
used to make quick adjustments as well. 

14



In order to log into the SharePoint site, you will need to go to 

https://webapps.wi.gov/sites/dsps/boards/ 

When you load this page, you should receive a prompt to enter your User name and password. Your 

User name is the Logon ID from when you created your Wisconsin Extension account. In order to tell 

SharePoint where to find your account, you will need to place wiext\ in front of your username at this 

login prompt. If you are logging in from a secure location, you can check the box to allow SharePoint to 

remember your username and password. 

 

If you have forgotten your login information or password, there is a link at the bottom of 

http://register.wisconsin.gov that can be used to recover your Login ID and Password. 

15

https://webapps.wi.gov/sites/dsps/boards/
http://register.wisconsin.gov/


Once you enter your information successfully, you will be taken to the SharePoint launch page. The 

launch page also contains useful Board member information on things like open meetings law, paperless 

meeting resources, and a wide array of other information. From this site, you can select your Board and 

then you will be taken to the Board site. Your section is listed underneath the Joint Board. 

 

There are several sections of this site that will be of interest to Board members.  If you examine the left 

hand side of the screen when you get to your Board’s site, you will see a navigation panel that lists every 

library and list you have permission to access. Please take a moment to familiarize yourself with the look 

of the site. Playing around is highly encouraged. 

16



The bar to the side of the left side of the page has several options on it that 

should be of interest to Board members. Many areas of the site are currently 

in development. 

Introduction & Overview Materials: This library contains several documents 

relevant to Board business. 

Board Materials: This library contains individual agenda items, as well as a 

copy of the completed agenda. The library is divided into subfolders by 

meeting. 

Legal Services and Compliance/Credentialing: These libraries will be used by 

DLSC and Credentialing personnel to provide documents relevant to the 

respective areas. These sections of the site are currently in development. 

Board Member Folders: This library contains a folder for each Board member. 

These folders are only visible to the Board member who they correspond to 

and are configured to allow Board members to upload any documents they wish. This folder will also 

contain a copy of the meeting agenda which Board members will be able to make comments in. 

Site Pages: This section is currently in development 

Calendar: A calendar of Board events. This is currently in development. 

Board Officers & Liaisons: This list contains a directory of Board officers and liaisons. This directory will 

be updated prior to the meeting. 

17



 

Selecting Board Materials will give you access to a list of meetings by date. Selecting the meeting date 

(under the “name” category) from this list will bring you to the items for that meeting date. 

 

Inside of a meeting date folder, you can view several subfolders, each of which will hold individual 

agenda items. These items will be uploaded over the course of the month for Board members to review. 

8 business days before the meeting date, the Board’s Bureau Assistant will begin preparing an agenda 

packet, which will be placed in the Agenda Packet folder, as well as each individual user’s folder in Board 

Member Folders. This document will be opened to comments by Board members. Any items added after 

the agenda deadline will also have comment-enabled copies added to individual Board member folders. 

18



When you select Board Member Folders, you will be brought to a page with a folder with your name on 

it. If you open this folder, you will be taken into your folder. You have elevated permissions inside of 

your folder, which will give you the ability to create, upload, edit, and save files. 

 

 

If you click on the documents link at the top of the page, you will be able to view a new set of options. 

Of particular interest are New Document and Upload Document. If you create a new document, 

SharePoint will create a new word file. Upload Document can be used to upload your own files, such as 

a copy of the agenda you have made comments in. 

19



When you upload a document, you will be prompted with the following window. Clicking Browse will let 

you navigate to a location on your computer to upload the file. The destination folder option should 

automatically fill in with your folder’s name. You will not want to change this. You can enter versioning 

comments if you desire to track any changes you made between different copies of files that you 

upload. 

 

20



Another useful feature you can get out of SharePoint is the ability to browse the site as an Explorer 

window. If you go into the Library tab and select Open with Explorer, you can open up a regular 

Windows Explorer window, through which you can edit files without needing to interface directly with 

the site. 

 

You can take this a step further and create a desktop shortcut to access your Board Member folder, 

should you so desire. In an open Explorer window, if you click the “Up” button, you can go back to the 

root folder for the Board Member Submissions, where you can then right click on your folder and create 

a shortcut (which will be sent to your desktop.) You can do this with other libraries in SharePoint as well, 

should you so desire. 

 

21



If you create a shortcut to your desktop, you can easily access and edit your agenda. If you open Adobe 

Reader, and navigate to the shortcut you created on your desktop, you will be able to open your folder. 

You may be prompted to enter your password again. 

 

Once you open the file, you will receive a prompt about checking the file out. Through SharePoint, you 

will need to check out a file in order to make changes to it. Click on Check Out & Open and you will be 

able to insert whatever comments you desire into the document. 

 

22



When you have made your comments to your document, you will need to check it back in so your 

comments will save. If you open the file menu and select SharePoint Server, you will be able to check 

the agenda packet back in, saving your changes to the document back to the SharePoint site. 

 

When you click on Check In, you will get the following window. You can enter version comments to track 

what changes you made in this version, should you so desire. Once you hit OK, the file will be saved back 

on SharePoint. If you check the Keep the document checked out after checking in this version, you will 

be able to continue making changes to the document after checking it in. 

 

23



 

 

 

24



State of Wisconsin 
Department of Safety & Professional Services 

 
 

AGENDA REQUEST FORM 
1) Name and Title of Person Submitting the Request: 
 
Dan Williams 

2) Date When Request Submitted: 
3/13/13 
Items will be considered late if submitted after 4:30 p.m. and  less than:  

 10 work days before the meeting for Medical Board 
 14 work days before the meeting for all others 

3) Name of Board, Committee, Council, Sections: 
 
Professional Counselor Section 
4) Meeting Date: 
 
4/8/13 

5) Attachments: 
 Yes 
 No 

 

6) How should the item be titled on the agenda page? 
 
Position Statements – discussion and consideration 

7) Place Item in: 
 Open Session 
 Closed Session 
 Both 

 

8) Is an appearance before the Board being 
scheduled?  If yes, who is appearing? 

  Yes by  
 No 

9) Name of Case Advisor(s), if required: 
 
N/A 

10) Describe the issue and action that should be addressed: 
 
In 2013 the Section will review the Position Statements currently on the DSPS website 
(PC page) to determine whether they should remain, be revised, or pulled entirely.  These 
statements were transferred over from the old website in November-2012.   
 

 

11)                                                                                  Authorization 
 
 
Signature of person making this request                                                                                          Date 
 
 
Supervisor (if required)                                                                                                                       Date 
 
 
Executive Director signature (indicates approval to add post agenda deadline item to agenda)    Date  
Directions for including supporting documents:  
1.  This form should be attached to any documents submitted to the agenda. 
2.  Post Agenda Deadline items must be authorized by a Supervisor and the Board Services Bureau Director. 
3.  If necessary, Provide original documents needing Board Chairperson signature to the Executive Assistant prior to the start of 
a meeting.  

 
 

25



Professional Counselor  

The following are answers to some frequently asked questions received by the Department of Safety and Professional 
Services. These questions and answers are general in nature and are provided as a public service. Licensees and 
applicants with specific questions should refer to the Wisconsin statutes and administrative code provisions which govern 
their profession. In any instance in which an answer may differ from the provisions of the statutes and administrative code 
provisions, the latter will govern. 

IS THERE A CODE OF ETHICS FOR LICENSED PROFESSIONAL COUNSELORS? 

Yes, like social workers, and marriage and family therapists, professional counselors must comply with 
the requirements set forth in the Wisconsin Administrative Code MPSW 20.02. 

 

CAN ANYONE CALL HIM OR HERSELF A COUNSELOR AND PRACTICE COUNSELING IN THE STATE 
OF WISCONSIN? 
Yes , as long as the person does not represent himself or herself to the public as a licensed professional 
counselor or any other words indicating or implying that such a person is licensed by the State of Wisconsin 
as stipulated in s. 457.04(6), Wis. Stats. Other exceptions to the use of the term “counselor” can be found in 
s.457.02 Wis. Stats.  
 
WHAT IS PROFESSIONAL COUNSELING? 

Professional counselors work with individuals, families, groups and organizations. Counseling is a 
collaborative effort between the counselor and client. Professional counselors help clients identify goals 
and potential solutions to problems which cause emotional turmoil; seek to improve communication and 
coping skills; strengthen self-esteem; and promote behavior change and optimal mental health. Through 
counseling you examine the behaviors, thoughts and feelings that are causing difficulties in your life. You 
learn effective ways to deal with your problems by building upon personal strengths. A professional 
counselor will encourage your personal growth and development in ways that foster your interest and 
welfare. A definition for professional counseling can also be found in s. 457.01(6) Wis. Stats. 

 

WHAT DO ALL THOSE INITIALS BEHIND THE COUNSELOR'S NAMES MEAN? 

A: LMFT (Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist)  
LPC (Licensed Professional Counselor)  
LCSW (Licensed Clinical Social Worker)  
CISW (Certified Independent Social Worker)  
CSW (Certified Social Worker)  
CAPSW (Certified Advanced Practice Social Worker) 

In addition to licensures through the State of Wisconsin , many therapists also have numerous 
credentials and membership affiliations, some of which have differing levels of membership based upon 
experience and evaluation.  In order to maintain licenses, professionals must submit CE's (Continuing 
Education) yearly in specific areas as designated by the different licenses. 

 

ARE LPC'S REQUIRED TO CARRY MALPRACTICE INSURANCE? 

Clinical social workers, MFT's, and professional counselors are required to have professional liability 
insurance. Exceptions exist for licensees employed in federal, state or local governmental agencies who 
only work for those agencies. These requirements are outlined in s. 457.24, Stat. and s. MPSW 1.10, Wis. 
Admin code. 

 

 

26

http://www.legis.state.wi.us/rsb/code/mpsw/mpsw020.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0457.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0457.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0457.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/statutes/Stat0457.pdf
http://www.legis.state.wi.us/rsb/code/mpsw/mpsw001.pdf


State of Wisconsin 
Department of Safety & Professional Services 

 
 

AGENDA REQUEST FORM 
1) Name and Title of Person Submitting the Request: 
 
Dan Williams 

2) Date When Request Submitted: 
3/29/13 
Items will be considered late if submitted after 4:30 p.m. and  less than:  

 10 work days before the meeting for Medical Board 
 14 work days before the meeting for all others 

3) Name of Board, Committee, Council, Sections: 
 
Professional Counselor Section 
4) Meeting Date: 
 
4/8/12 

5) Attachments: 
 Yes 
 No 

 

6) How should the item be titled on the agenda page? 
 
Winona State University letter of inquiry – 
Discussion and Consideration 

7) Place Item in: 
 Open Session 
 Closed Session 
 Both 

 

8) Is an appearance before the Board being 
scheduled?  If yes, who is appearing? 

  Yes by  
 No 

9) Name of Case Advisor(s), if required: 
 
N/A 

10) Describe the issue and action that should be addressed: 
 
 Section discussion as to the letter provided by Mary Fawcett, Professor and Chair, 
Counselor Education Department, Winona State University 
 

11)                                                                                  Authorization 
 
 
Signature of person making this request                                                                                          Date 
 
 
Supervisor (if required)                                                                                                                       Date 
 
 
Executive Director signature (indicates approval to add post agenda deadline item to agenda)    Date  
Directions for including supporting documents:  
1.  This form should be attached to any documents submitted to the agenda. 
2.  Post Agenda Deadline items must be authorized by a Supervisor and the Board Services Bureau Director. 
3.  If necessary, Provide original documents needing Board Chairperson signature to the Executive Assistant prior to the start of 
a meeting.  

 
 

27



From: Fawcett, Mary [mailto:MFawcett@winona.edu] 
 
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2013 11:37 AM 
 
To: Tomer, Justin - DSPS 
 
Cc: Hittner, Jo A 
 
Subject: Concerns about WI School Counslors abilility to obtain Training LPC Licensure 
 
Hello Mr. Justin Tomer, 
 
I am currently the chair of the Counselor Education Department at Winona State University. As you may know, many of 
our graduates work in your state as professional school and Licensed Professional Counselors. I have recently been 
notified of the policy of the WI Dept of Safety and Professional Services Dept that a licensed School Counselor can obtain 
the Training LPC Licensure and practice as an LPC w/out coursework or an internship that prepares them to work with 
agency mental health and behavioral health clients. 
 
When you allow a school counselor to practice as an LPC in WI, you are reinforcing the practice of a professional outside 
of their training experiences and competency areas. In particular, your school counselors do not have a course in 
Orientation to Community Counseling, a course in Diagnosis and Treatment (which most school counselors are not 
required to take in their graduate training) and a course in community counseling internship where they are supervised and 
deemed qualified to work in a behavioral health/community/agency setting. We have students who obtain a graduate 
degree with both school and community counseling focus areas in order to obtain both school and LPC licenses and in 
each case they need special classes to prepare them for their respective licenses. 
 
I am deeply concerned that you have school counselors that are able to apply for the LPC training license and are not 
adequately prepared for the work they do in behavioral health settings. I would like to discuss my concern with you at 
your convenience, 
 
Most sincerely, 
 
Mary Fawcett, Professor and Chair 
 
Counselor Education Department 
 
Winona State University 
 
507-457-5338 
 
mfawcett@winona.edu<mailto:mfawcett@winona.edu> 
 

 

Quoted Text: 
 
Good Morning Everyone, 
I am just sharing this note as I have recent information about LPC licensure in Wisconsin.  This may be 
something that you may want to share with future students.  Since I am a graduate coming back to 
Winona State to gain a separate emphasis in Community Counseling I learned something new from the 
Sate of Wisconsin Licensing Bureau.  I learned that if you have a "professional degree" in some form of 
counseling you are eligible for Training LPC Licensure.  Though I am grateful I took more coursework 
beneficial for my licensure in Wisconsin it was not required to have the internship in order to begin my 
training license since I already had an internship in my first professional licensing program as a school 
counselor.  Truly if a professional school counselor who graduated from Winona State while it was a 

28

mailto:MFawcett@winona.edu
mailto:mfawcett@winona.edu%3cmailto:mfawcett@winona.edu


CACREP program wanted to switch from being a school counselor to a community counselor all he/she 
would have to do is apply for the LPC Training License put in the 3000 supervised hours required 
before receiving Professional LPC Licensure.  Other requirements are as follows for LPC: Pass NCE, 
complete state licensing regulation test. 
 
No matter what program the "Counseling Professional" goes through he/she is always required to put 
in the 3000 hrs. training license unless he or she has already been working as a credentialed LPC in 
another state then there are some different things to look at. 
 
Student Name (left off for confidentiality) 

 

29



 

 

 

30



State of Wisconsin 
Department of Safety & Professional Services 

 
 

AGENDA REQUEST FORM 
1) Name and Title of Person Submitting the Request: 
 
Dan Williams 

2) Date When Request Submitted: 
3/29/13 
Items will be considered late if submitted after 4:30 p.m. and  less than:  

 10 work days before the meeting for Medical Board 
 14 work days before the meeting for all others 

3) Name of Board, Committee, Council, Sections: 
 
Professional Counselor Section 
4) Meeting Date: 
 
4/8/13 

5) Attachments: 
 Yes 
 No 

 

6) How should the item be titled on the agenda page? 
 
UW-Stout letter of inquiry – Discussion and 
Consideration 

7) Place Item in: 
 Open Session 
 Closed Session 
 Both 

 

8) Is an appearance before the Board being 
scheduled?  If yes, who is appearing? 

  Yes by  
 No 

9) Name of Case Advisor(s), if required: 
 
N/A 

10) Describe the issue and action that should be addressed: 
 
 From UW-Stout: 
Attached is the letter of request for consideration.  DVR has told us that MPSW 1.11 will be applied to 
Vocational Evaluators to be in compliance with the statutes and this is where it has become a source of 
concern for us, as our evaluators are not LPC’s. They could become eligible, they graduated from our 
CORE accredited Rehabilitation MS program, but this may not be the intention of MPSW 1.11. Perhaps 
this begs discussion of a larger question regarding Vocational Evaluation and LPC. 
 
 

11)                                                                                  Authorization 
 
 
Signature of person making this request                                                                                          Date 
 
 
Supervisor (if required)                                                                                                                       Date 
 
 
Executive Director signature (indicates approval to add post agenda deadline item to agenda)    Date  
Directions for including supporting documents:  
1.  This form should be attached to any documents submitted to the agenda. 
2.  Post Agenda Deadline items must be authorized by a Supervisor and the Board Services Bureau Director. 
3.  If necessary, Provide original documents needing Board Chairperson signature to the Executive Assistant prior to the start of 
a meeting.  

 
 

31



To: Dan Williams 
Executive Director 
Division of Policy Development 
WI Department of Safety & Professional Services 
(608)267-7223 
dan1.williams@wisconsin.gov 

Charles V. Lindsey, Chair 
DSPS Professional Counseling Board 
 

For your consideration: It has recently come to our attention that the Wisconsin Division of 
Vocational Rehabilitation (DVR) will soon require Vocational Evaluators to comply with 
MPSW 1.11 which defines the authority, use and requirements for performing Psychometric 
testing.  The definition of Psychometric test includes “a procedure for measuring psychological, 
behavioral or interpersonal characteristics in which a sample of an examinee’s behavior is 
obtained and subsequently evaluated and scored using a standardized process” (Chapter MPSW 
1, p.3), Authority and Practice regarding LPC.  The purpose of this memo is to request that 
degreed Vocational Rehabilitation professionals who conduct vocational evaluations be 
exempted from this requirement. 

Vocational Evaluators in general, provide evaluation/assessment of vocational or occupational 
potential of clientele referred by DVR. These evaluators often use standardized tools such as 
Interest Inventories, Aptitude tests, assessments of Temperament, etc. to assist the client and the 
Rehabilitation Counselor to better understand vocational/occupational potential. Evaluators 
commonly provide recommendations for various types of occupations, training needs while on 
the job, job accommodations, etc. Vocational Evaluators commonly work for Not-For-Profit 
organizations, small businesses or state or federal agencies, and the imposition of MPSW 1.11 
may force many to lose jobs or go out of business. 

We are requesting that Vocational Evaluators be exempt from the requirements of MPSW 1.11 
because the nature of the work does not include using the Diagnostic Statistical Manual (DSM) 
for diagnostic or treatment purposes. Vocational Evaluators provide vocationally related services 
versus the more diagnostic and treatment related evaluations described in MPSW 1.11 and the 
Professional Counselor Post-Graduate Supervisor Approval Form #2456, Ch. 457, Stats. While 
Vocational Evaluators use tools that are somewhat similar and use terms that may fit within the 
definition of MPSW 1.11, the services provided are distinctly different and fit into categories that 
are truly outside of what I believe to be the intent of MPSW 1.11.  

I would be happy to meet with the Board if desired, to help explain our position and what we feel 
are distinct differences between the diagnostic and treatment orientation of MPSW 1.11 and the 
vocational service orientation provided by Vocational Evaluators. 

32

mailto:dan1.williams@wisconsin.gov


 

Sincerely, 

Bob 

Bob Peters, PhD., CRC , LPC 
Associate Dean 
UW-Stout 
College of Education, Health and Human Sciences 
218 Heritage Hall 
715.232.1983 
petersb@uwstout.edu 

 

 

 

 

33

mailto:petersb@uwstout.edu


 

 

 

34



State of Wisconsin 
Department of Safety & Professional Services 

 
 

AGENDA REQUEST FORM 
1) Name and Title of Person Submitting the Request: 
 
Dan Williams 

2) Date When Request Submitted: 
3/20/13 
Items will be considered late if submitted after 4:30 p.m. and  less than:  

 10 work days before the meeting for Medical Board 
 14 work days before the meeting for all others 

3) Name of Board, Committee, Council, Sections: 
 
Professional Counselor Section 
4) Meeting Date: 
 
4/9/13 

5) Attachments: 
 Yes 
 No 

 

6) How should the item be titled on the agenda page? 
 
Executive Order 61 – Discussion and Consideration 

7) Place Item in: 
 Open Session 
 Closed Session 
 Both 

 

8) Is an appearance before the Board being 
scheduled?  If yes, who is appearing? 

  Yes by  
 No 

9) Name of Case Advisor(s), if required: 
 
N/A 

10) Describe the issue and action that should be addressed: 
 
From the last meeting: 
 

• MOTION: Leslie Mirkin moved, seconded by Allison Gordon, to examine in 
response to Executive Order 61 all of MPSW as relevant to the PC Section 
prior to the April 8th, 2013 meeting for purposes of discussion and 
recommendations at that meeting.  Motion carried unanimously. 

•  

11)                                                                                  Authorization 
 
 
Signature of person making this request                                                                                          Date 
 
 
Supervisor (if required)                                                                                                                       Date 
 
 
Executive Director signature (indicates approval to add post agenda deadline item to agenda)    Date  
Directions for including supporting documents:  
1.  This form should be attached to any documents submitted to the agenda. 
2.  Post Agenda Deadline items must be authorized by a Supervisor and the Board Services Bureau Director. 
3.  If necessary, Provide original documents needing Board Chairperson signature to the Executive Assistant prior to the start of 
a meeting.  

 
 

35



 

 

 

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48


	A. Agenda
	B. Minutes 
	C. Administrative Matters 
	C.1 Paperless Initiative 
	How to Sign up for an Account
	Adobe Use
	Signing into and Using SharePoint


	D. Position Statements
	E. Winona State
	F. UW-Stout
	G. Legislation/ Administrative Rules
	G.1 EO 51
	G.2 MPSW 10, 11, and 14
	MPSW 10
	MPSW 11
	MPSW 12
	MPSW 14


	K. Monitoring
	Monitoring Roster
	Bradley W. Knapp
	petition
	Gerndt new
	Gerndt followup
	Schoener Report new
	Schoener followup
	Original assessment
	LPC MON
	LPC FDO

	M. Request for Extension of Time to Complete CE�
	M.1 J.B.




